MINUTES
of the

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
January 3, 2011
THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI,
STATE OF HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI
BUILDING, WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON MONDAY, JANUARY 3, 2011, BEGINNING AT
2:04 P.M., WITH MAYOR ALAN M. ARAKAWA PRESIDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SECTION 3-5.1 OF THE MAUI COUNTY CHARTER.
MAYOR ALAN M. ARAKAWA: Going to call the Council Organizational Meeting of
January 3, to order.
My first order of business is to appoint Jeff Kuwada, temporary Clerk. Jeff, would you
please call the roll.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS GLADYS C. BAISA, ROBERT CARROLL,
ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G. COUCH JR.,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, DENNIS A. MATEO, JOSEPH PONTANILLA,
MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, AND MICHAEL B. WHITE.
ACTING COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, all nine Members of the
Council are present.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Clerk.
Could I ask all of the Councilmembers to please stand, everyone here so we may do
the Pledge of Allegiance.
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PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Mayor and Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and
recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you very much. At this time, we will be proceeding with public
testimony. Out of courtesy if any of you have cell phones that are on, could you
please turn them off or put them on the vibrate mode.
When you're going to testify, you each have three minutes to testify and if your
testimony is going to last longer than that you have an additional one minute to
conclude. Okay.
Clerk, public testimony please.
ACTING COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we have received two requests to offer
testimony on agenda items. The first individual to offer to testimony is DeGray
Vanderbilt. Mr. Vanderbilt will offer testimony on Resolution No. 11-3 and Resolution
No. 11-4. He will be followed by Lucienne deNaie.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay, please state your name for the record.

MR. DEGRAY VANDERBILT (testifying on Resolution Nos. 11-3 and 11-4):
Aloha, Mr. Mayor.
My name is DeGray Vanderbilt, resident of Molokai.
Congratulations, Mr. Mayor on your victory and congratulations to all the new
Members on the Council and the return of the veteran Councilmembers.
I wanted to touch base on the adopting the Rules of the Council. And this might
seem like a stretch, but I would like to, to consider a change in the rules where
people from Molokai who travel all this distance and pay two or three hundred dollars
to get over here to testify be given either a per diem or five minutes to testify.
Likewise the people of Hana be given at least four minutes to testify and the people
of Maui who can drive here at close range three minutes to testify.
And, I just think that would be fair. I was at a meeting of the State Health Planning
Board about dialysis this morning. We had people fly in to, from Molokai with some
very well done testimony, they were given two minutes to testify. And it was just a
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sad situation on the bringing dialysis to Kaiser and, and that might cause Molokai and
Nana and Kalaupapa to have their really good dialysis services really compromised.
And there's some way that all these big guys can get together because the care is
about the people, people's health. But anyway, that just set wrong with me this
morning and so that was a little tongue and cheek, I don't know what chance that has
to get through, but I thought I'd throw it out just for consideration.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. DeGray Vanderbilt. Any questions? If not, thank you
very much.
MR. VANDERBILT: Well I had, I was testifying on two items.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay, proceed.
MR. VANDERBILT: The next one was on Resolution 11-4, this standing committees. I
understand that there is a new committee called the General Plan Committee and it
couldn't have a better person in charge as far as getting things done with
Councilperson Gladys Baisa.
But I, I would just like to encourage this Council to understand that there is a Maui
Island Plan, and Lanai and Molokai's community plans are our island plans. And one
of the things that we wanted was that the people who were involved with the General
Plan go and do the island plan or the community plan because they have the
continuity and the institutional knowledge just like happened on Maui.
The people from the General Plan did the Maui Island Plan and if they had not had
that continuity, it wouldn't have even gotten as far as it did today. So that's just one
thing. I know there's, it's been so long since we did the General Plan, some people
have moved on, but those from the previous General Plan Advisory I would hope this
Council would support them being on the Community Plan Advisory Council.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. VANDERBILT: Oh, Mr., Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions for DeGray?
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
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MAYOR ARAKAWA: If not, thank you.
Lucienne. Did one, is there anybody else that wishes to testify, please be prepared
to.

MS. LUCIENNE DENAIE (testifying on Resolution No. 11-3):
Thank you all and I echo DeGray's sentiment. Wonderful to see everybody
postelection here sitting, looking their best.
I too what to address the matter of fairness in public testimony for obvious reasons.
I'm down here testifying a lot and you know, throughout your, your proposed rules,
there's reference to things about why this Council is receiving the testimony.
The idea is to gain knowledge, not just to count how many bodies are out or
anything, but to gain knowledge. And DeGray is right, there are some people that do
take time to prepare testimony that have technical expertise or other expertise to
offer.
And I was disappointed to see that a proposed rule would limit Committee Chair's
from extending testimony periods. And, and this is often done, just a short, short
amount of time like extended it from three minutes to five minutes.
Instead I believe your proposed rule is suggesting that everybody just be set to the
same standard that if you're, if you're a Council testifier you have three minutes to
testify and if you're testifying before a committee where you might have three people
testifying for this whole committee hearing, but you still have to limit yourself to, to
three minutes whether you came from Molokai, or drove from Hana, or drove all the
way from Honokohau.
And it just seems like if the Chair could use their discretion, every single one of you
ladies and gentlemen are chairing a committee and you're all intelligent people. And
I would think that you would want to be able to use your discretion to allow a five
minute testimony if you saw that there's some people there that could give you what
you needed. And I don't see where that really does harm because the Chair could
always decide to limit it to three minutes. That doesn't really preclude the three
minute rule at all, but it gives an option and a choice.
And since you are here to try to get the best information possible, I, I understand that
anyone can turn in extensive written testimony, but let's face it it's good to hear things
with one's ear as well as read them with the eyes. So that would, that would just be
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my input for your very first meeting, if you could leave the discretion to the Committee
Chairs, they're all capable of making that decision.
Thank you very much and Happy New Year to all. Aloha.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any questions? If not, thank you, Lucienne.
Is there anyone else that wishes to testify at this time? If not, may I have a motion to
stop all testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SO MOVE, MR. CHAIR.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay, it's been moved and seconded to close testimony. All those in
favor say "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Motion carried.
Mr. Clerk, are there any written testimony?
ACTING COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we have received no written testimony.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you.
Then Mr. Clerk, shall we proceed with resolutions.
The following resolution was presented.
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RESOLUTION
NO. 11-1
ELECTING THE CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that the
Honorable Danny A. Mateo be and is hereby elected Chair of the Council of
the County of Maui for the term commencing January 2, 2011, twelve o'clock
meridian, and terminating January 2, 2013, twelve o'clock meridian.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you. May I have the motion?
Councilmember Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
MR. MAYOR, I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 11-1,
ENTITLED "ELECTING THE CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: It's been moved by Councilmember Pontanilla, check, second by
Councilmember Victorino to adopt Resolution 11-1 to elect the Chair of the Council.
Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Mayor, may we have the County Clerk read the
resolution in its entirety.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: County Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay, any discussion?
Councilmember Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.
It is my honor to move forward in support of Councilmember Mateo to serve as
Council Chair in the upcoming term. As sitting Members both sharing in service for
the fifth and last consecutive term on the Council, I have had the opportunity to
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witness Councilmember Mateo during the past eight years to be a passionate and
hardworking public servant.
As Chairman during the past term, he has proven himself to be open, receptive and
fair in leading the body forward. He has carried our message as a devoted advocate
for our County in the halls of the Legislature. I'm confident in his experience and
resolve to continue with the responsibilities and challenges of the Council
Chairmanship.
He continues to successfully balance outstanding representation for the Island of
Molokai, his duty to this body and our entire Maui County community. I ask the
Members unanimous support of Mr. Mateo as our Council Chair for the upcoming
term.
Thank you.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you. Any further discussion? If not, all in favor of the motion
say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Motion carried unanimously.
Council Chairman Mateo, will you please assume the Chairmanship.

CHAIR MATEO TAKES THE ROSTRUM
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Mayor, thank, thank you very much.
Members, I ask your indulgence in affording me the liberty to take a few minutes to
make a few comments this afternoon before we continue on with our agenda.
To my esteemed colleagues, I thank you for the distinct privilege and honor to serve
as your Chairman.
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With the dawn of the new year comes new hope, greater expectations and an
urgency to confront the many, the many changes and challenges that awaits all of us.
The eyes of Maui County is upon us. There is a public mandate for change,
changing the so-called business as usual practices and now focusing in on the
priority at hand, which is the people's business. Individual or personal agendas will
not take precedence over the people's business. We are the stakeholders in
addressing the many pressing and complex issues that this County now faces.
Communication will play a primary part in our leadership teams effort and each one
of us will be held accountable. I expect much, I expect our committee chairs to work
diligently in addressing those issues in each of your committee agendas on a timely
basis. In addition, we will make every attempt to provide each one of you with the
continued technical support that you may need to advance your responsibility.
As a body, we recognize our goals and objectives, and collectively target our efforts
in meeting those goals. With today's uncertainties, the greater demands will insist on
unifying our talents in stabilizing the very foundation of our families, jobs, efficiency in
government, accountability, partnerships with private and nonprofit organizations,
affordable housing potentials, water source development, infrastructure
improvements, and with a new insight and vision we will seek new solutions in
addressing this County's aging needs.
The needs and demands of our County will continue to grow but the very basic fabric,
financial stability, social and morally strong values must be the foundation that we
build upon.
Members, the seats we occupy come with great responsibility. The future of Maui
County depends on good investment, sound judgment, calculated decisions and a
legislative body that holds the political will to make a difference. We're in this
together.
Mahalo.
Mr. Clerk, can we proceed with the agenda.
The following resolution was presented.
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RESOLUTION
NO. 11-2
ELECTING THE VICE-CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that the
Honorable Joseph Pontanilla be and is hereby elected Vice-Chair of the
Council of the County of Maui for the term commencing January 2, 2011,
twelve o'clock meridian, and terminating January 2, 2013, twelve o'clock
meridian.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO ACCEPT RESOLUTION 11-2, "ELECTING THE
VICE-CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL".
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, it's been moved by Mr. Victorino and second by Mr. Hokama to
adopt Resolution No. 11-2.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
May we have the Clerk read the resolution in its entirety.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, if you could please read the resolution.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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It is with great pleasure that I nominate Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla for this County
Council. Mr. Pontanilla has demonstrated many years of excellent leadership and
the resolve to do good for this County and its people.
I have watched Mr. Pontanilla through the years develop a very well rounded working
relationship with not only this Council and, or the Council and its Members, but with
the Administration, various departments and as well as the community at large.
He has demonstrated his abilities with his business perspective, his volunteerism and
many other accomplishments for his lifetime and has brought that to this Council and
has proven to be invaluable.
I would like to ask all my fellow Members to truly support this nomination of our ViceChair of this Council, Mr. Joseph Pontanilla.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, the floor is open for discussion?
Further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion to adopt
Resolution No. 11-2, electing Joseph Pontanilla, Vice-Chair of the Maui County
Council signify by saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried unanimously. Congratulations, Vice-Chair Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Vice-Chair Pontanilla, the Chair offers you the opportunity to say a few
words.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I really appreciate the comments made by my
colleague Councilmember Victorino. I, I guess he's been very attentive in the things
that I do, I kind of forgot many of them.
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But, I, I really do appreciate serving this Council as Vice-Chairman and Mr.
Chairman, you know, I fully respect your ability as Council Chair, but if you need
someone to sit on that chair while you're away, you know you can call on me.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
And to complete the transition, Mr. Pontanilla.
(Vice-Chair Pontanilla's name plate was changed.)

Thank you very much, Mr. Clerk, proceed.
The following resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
NO. 11-3
ADOPTING THE RULES OF THE COUNCIL
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that it does
hereby adopt the Rules of the Council as set forth in Exhibit "A", attached
hereto and made a part hereof.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 11-3, "ADOPTING THE
RULES OF THE COUNCIL".
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: We have a motion on the floor made by Ms. Baisa and second by
Mr. Carroll to adopt Resolution No. 11-3.
Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, I haven't had a rehearsal but I've been watching
what has happened previously and I'm assuming that we are not going to request to
have these Rules read.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms., Ms. Baisa, if, if you, if you wish to the Chair will gladly ask the Clerk to
read the resolution in its entirety.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, I, think that it might be a very time-consuming thing,
I don't know what the will of the body is.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, Members of the Council, if, if there is a preference that we read
the resolution regarding, Resolution 11-3, the Chair will order the Clerk to read it in its
entirety. Is there any objections to that, or is there a preference to just move on?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Move on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Move on.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Move on.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
IN LIGHT OF THAT BECAUSE THIS HAS BEEN PASSED OUT
TO THE MEMBERS, I WOULD LIKE TO MOVE TO AMEND THE
FINAL SENTENCE OF RULE 19(D), BY DELETING THE WORD
"AND" BEFORE THE "(3)", AND, AT THE END OF THE RULE,
ADDING A SEMI-COLON THEN THE FOLLOWING PHRASE:
"AND (4) RESOLUTIONS RELATING TO THE ELECTION,
ESTABLISHMENT, OR APPOINTMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S
OFFICERS, COMMITTEES, OR STAFF, OR RELATING TO
AMENDMENTS OF THESE RULES".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have a proposed amendment on the floor made by
Ms. Baisa and second by Mr. Victorino.
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The Chair would like to reference, we all, it was distributed just a bit ago, we have the
proposed amendment dated, dated January 3, 2011, distributed to each one you.
You have the exact verbiage read by Ms. Baisa. We also have in this submission,
we have the, the description, the effect, as well as the reason for the proposal.
The Chair recognizes Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ah, thank you very much Chair.
The effect of this amendment would be that a bill or resolution being considered for
final reading that is amended at a Council meeting shall, as it stands, shall not be
acted upon at the same meeting as the amendment. Final action on such an
amended bill or resolution shall not be taken until the next feasible meeting. This
requirement of a delay shall not apply to: (1) any bill or resolution that requires final
action at the meeting to ensure compliance with a deadline established pursuant to
Federal, State or, State law, or the County Charter; (2) the correction of manifest
clerical or typographical errors in numbering, spelling, capitalization, punctuation, or
grammar, or the correction of other non-substantive errors, which may be made at
the meeting, or by the County Clerk after consultation with the Department of the
Corporation Counsel, provided that the correction does not alter the meaning or
effect of the bill or resolution; and (3) amendments that have been posted on the
meeting agenda; and this would be the amendment, and (4) resolutions relating to
the election, establishment, or appointment of the Council's officers, committees, or
staff, or relating to amendments of these rules.
And this is the purpose of the amendment.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Ms. Baisa. Members, further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you, what we'll, Chair is going to do is go ahead and call for
the question if there is no further discussion? All those in favor of the proposed
amendment as recommended by Ms. Baisa, signify by saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, MATEO, PONTANILLA, VICTORINO, AND
WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA.
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CHAIR MATEO: Motion, let the record show we have eight "ayes", one "no" Mr. Hokama.
And let's go ahead and, the Chair is going to go back to the main motion.
Members, main motion on the floor is to adopt Resolution No. 11-3 as amended, all
those in favor of the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: May I ask for your direction for the body please regarding,
would you like, it is your intention Mr. Chair to take the rules in its entirety. I would
like to ask either yourself or someone who is proposing a revision to the old rules to
help maybe give some clarification so we can better understand some of the
proposals please.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, sure, go ahead, go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, the first one I have is on page one, it is from the
memo from Mr. Fukuoka to you, under Rule 2. My understanding that a, the proposal
is that public hearings shall be scheduled when required or at the Council Chair's
discretion. We are aware that by Charter, any three Members may request a public
hearing. Could you please give us an example why we would have one person, the
Chair, be able to have that authority to just, to call a public hearing, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
The, the reason for that particular proposal is so that at least the initial discussion can
be had prior to three Members requesting for a public hearing. During that particular
process, instead of the, instead of just requesting for public hearing, by being able to
work with the Council Chair we would have insight based on the intent, the purpose,
the need for the public hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and, and Chairman, I, it's my understanding this
afternoon that you wish to take this motion in its entirety.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Correct, thank you for that, Chairman.
Chairman, my other question would be on your proposed revision to Rule 9, No. 4,
point four. I for the life of me, Mr. Chair with all due respect to this revision, it is my
understanding that we are saying by making this rule that a person who makes a
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motion can vote against the motion. Well my question Chairman is then why make
the motion in its first place.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama, it's been, it's been practice that the, it is the committee
members, nonmembers usually do not make motions. Nonmembers usually do not
have a vote in committee, committee work. And this just seems to make the process
a lot more fair by letting it, making it clear at the get-go of who can, who cannot
participate in terms of motions on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for that, Mr. Chairman. And I would agree with
you.
My question is why would we make the rule whereby a Member who makes the
motion will be voting against the motion. To me it makes no sense. The person
shouldn't then even make the motion.
Someone who is advocating that position should make the motion to be able to
advocate for it and then vote for it, but not make a motion and vote no. That's in
contrary to existing Robert's Rules, and this is a parliamentary thing for the body, its
nothing to do with Corp. Counsel, nothing to do with the Clerk. This is a
parliamentary question for the body if we're going allow someone to make a motion
and then not vote and then to vote against it. I having a hard time with this logic,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Urn, um, the Chair is going to read that particular bullet point.
It says, clarify that an abstaining Member may still participate in deliberations but not
participate in executive meetings. That nonvoting committee members may not
make or second motions and that the maker of the motion may not speak in
opposition to the motion but may vote against it.
What, and I think I thought it was initially self-explanatory where we're not saying that
the individual may, cannot vote, will not vote against any other motion other than
participate in the discussion. If the maker of the motion does in fact make the motion,
then that individual is not capable of voting against the motion that they had just
made.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Which is standard parliamentary practice. Am I, am I not,
am I reading it wrong, Chair? I mean, you know, if I, I'm reading this proposal and
coming to the wrong conclusion, then I am happy to be corrected, but as I read it
there's two different categories of Members in this one point. Those that do not have
voting privileges and those that have.
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CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And only those with voting privileges can make motions.
So I'm still trying to understand why then would a Member make a motion and then
vote against it. Makes no sense to me, Chairman, with all respect.
CHAIR MATEO: What, we're, Mr. Hokama, as is currently in our currently, in our current
practices, the maker of the motion does not speak against the motion and that is not
what this particular bullet point is referencing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, go ahead. Mr. Couch. I'm sorry, I'm sorry, Mr. Couch,
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, Chairman, I'm happy to ... you know for me this
just does not make sense and I, I cannot support it, support the change.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think if I can point to not Rule 9F is where it says in here at
least that it allows the movant to actually vote against the motion and I think that I
agree with Councilmember Hokama that Robert's Rules I don't think allows for that.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
I'm trying to recall, I think several months ago we had an incident on the floor of the
Council. I think everybody who was here will remember where the movant voted
against the motion and was ruled out of order.
And I, I was a little puzzled when I read this, I will admit I read it on my Blackberry
and really, really didn't have a chance to do any research but I am of the same
understanding as Member Hokama and Member Couch.
But you know, these are our rules and my understanding is that our rules take
precedence over Robert's. When there is no guidance then we go to Robert's is that
not correct?
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CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we could do this if this is what we wanted to do.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
Members, the Chair is going to, urn, sorry, go ahead, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Is this because the nonvoting, a particular nonvoting Member may not make a motion
so therefore having a voting Member speak out to put forward a motion, is that kind
of what it's addressing also.
CHAIR MATEO: Well, usually, all leads of any committee, which includes the motions are
done by committee members. Those that do not have voting authority or voting
rights in a committee normally do not make motions. They, that does not preclude
them from working with a committee member in being, in having them, you know
offer the motion.
And the Chair is going to take a very short recess at this point and Members, for
about three minutes. We will be in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 2:38 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 2:41 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT FOR
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN, EXCUSED.)
CHAIR MATEO:
Council of the County of Maui Organizational meeting for, for
January 3, 2011 will reconvene.
Members, at the break, I will ask the Clerk at this point to read a passage out of
Robert's Rules in terms of the query that was just asked a little bit ago. Mr. Clerk, will
you please read that specific area.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, I'm, I am making reference to Robert's Rules of Order
Newly Revised, 10 th Edition.
On page 381, in the second paragraph, the paragraph begins: "REFRAINING FROM
SPEAKING AGAINST ONE'S OWN MOTION. In debate, the maker of a motion,
while he cannot [sic] vote against it, is not allowed to speak against his own motion.
He need not speak at all, but if he does he is obliged to take a favorable position. If
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he changes his mind while the motion he made is pending, he can, in effect, advise
the assembly of this by asking permission to withdraw the motion."
CHAIR MATEO: That was speaking, is there a reference to voting?
Go ahead, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was asking for the second piece of that and that is can you
vote against it?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: The answer is, is yes. "In debate, the maker of a motion, while he can--"
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you give us the reference, please.
COUNTY CLERK: "--he can vote against it". This is on page 381.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNTY CLERK: And it begins on line eight through fifteen.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, I don't see the voting--can vote against it. Okay, first
line, okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Clerk.
Chair recognizes Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for that recess as well as your, our
professional staff making that information available.
(Councilmember Cochran returned to the meeting at 2:44 p.m.)
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I can just tell you for me with past practice, past experience,
I would just prefer that if you change your mind at making the motion, to make it
easier for everyone, you just withdraw the motion and have an advocate who can
speak for something and vote for something.
I just think that if, it's more fair regarding the position or the proposal of a motion to be
able to have a proper advocate than one who is not going to say anything and then
vote against the motion he or she is proposing.
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So that's just, that's just my personal take, take on how I would rather see things
done regarding our rules and how we conduct our businesses, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
And the Chair appreciates, you know, your, your questioning of some of the Rules. I,
I think we all need to, to understand that our Council Rules, you know, is subject to
change. And, if we see that it works for us, then by all means, you know, it will
support our need. If it does not, then it becomes our responsibility to specifically
address them and cite exactly what part of the rule does not fit or does not apply.
Then it becomes indicative on this body to take action to see that the rules does in
fact work for all of us.
So thank you very much for bringing that up and I am sure that we will continue to
have further discussions on the Rules of the Council as we continue to progress this
term.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, last, last one that I would like to ask for your
assistance and is the first bullet point regarding Rule 17, Mr. Chairman.
By coincidence we had testimony regarding this rule, but I would like to have you
consider, Mr. Chairman, as well as our other Members, that I would like each
committee chair to have some form of flexibility regarding its conduct of the work for,
on behalf of the Council.
There may be times when no one will be testifying on a maybe just a procedural item
before the committee as well as they may be a list that will take half a day or longer.
We've all sat in meetings that, where testimony has taken the majority of the meeting
and the body has not been able to move to get to the work and the, the, the
responsibilities to put forth a recommendation to the Council.
So what I'm asking is if the other Members would like to also consider allowing each
committee chair, I, I know you want to do standardization, Mr. Chair. But I think with
all of our differences, responsibility as committee chairs, we all know that Mr. Carroll
with Land Use and testimony for that specific committee is different for maybe the
committee that I'll be chairing. Definitely different from the type of testimony
Ms. Baisa is going to get for her committee, especially when you not only looking at
Maui Island planning document but the Molokai, Lanai planning documents,
Mr. Chair.
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So it's just something I would like to bring up to allow, if the body would like to have
its committee chairs have a little bit flexibility regarding this point.
And my last comment, Mr. Chair, is if we're going to allow that extra minute, then let's
just call it four minutes testimony, period, so everybody understands that's all they
got.
Honolulu Council works with one minute, that's what they do. They request written
testimony, they ask their testifiers for clarification or what, but they give them one
minute. And they, they have been able to conduct their business and I don't see a
major groundswell of, of people asking them to change their rules.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And Mr. Hokama, to, to address the concern
that you had just cited, I, I, believe all of the Members are aware that as committee
chairs, you have that opportunity to suspend our rules. And by that rule suspension,
it's up to you to determine how long you would want public testimonies to occur. So
for us, you still have that opportunity.
There is flexibility in, in our proposed rules and it is subject to you taking the initiative,
taking a look at the subject matter, taking a look at the number of individuals who
have signed up to testify and make that determination whether or not you'd like to
suspend the rules and create your own length at that time.
But I think for the, for the sake of us being able to establish, you know, a
standardized set of rules, I believe we're, we are going in the right direction at this
point.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Again, I, I've always been with the understanding of what you've just explained. And
as far as Council meetings were concerned, the, the rationale was at Council
meetings many times various bills and ordinances or resolutions were being brought
forward so you had a multi, multiplicity of items that are being reviewed.
And so to allow a lot of time or more time, and no offense to Mr. DeGray, I agree, if
you come from Molokai, Hana, some outlying district and you travel a long way, paid
air fare, ferry, whatever it may be, yeah, some consideration should be given to
something of that nature.
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However by standardizing this, and we have all sat here in long drawn out
controversial readings of various bills, and for which we spend much of the morning
into the afternoon before we even attempt to get to the agenda. So I think you are
right, I would have to agree that we are moving in the right direction.
Whether you want to go three minute, one minute to conclude or four minutes, I have
no qualms with that one. You know, other jurisdictions do it, they have two minutes,
one minute like Oahu, two minutes on the Big Island, different jurisdictions do it
differently. But I think this County has never, I repeat never suppressed anyone from
coming up and giving up public testimony.
And many of them, can do it in three minutes, they are very, very precise and we
allow three minutes on each subject matter. So I had like Mr. DeGray came up with
two different subject matters, sometime three, four and five subject matters. We've
had testifiers speak each time on a different matter and, or a different item on the
agenda and we allow three minutes per item.
So I think you've moved in the right direction, Mr. Chair, I think this way we can
somehow have continuity for Council meetings. For committees you've allowed us
and we have had, where some committee chairs unlimited time, others three
minutes, others five minute, we've changed depending on the item and the amount of
testifiers. Again, three hours is a lot, three and a half hours is a lot, not very much
time to do a lot of issues even within the committee itself.
So Mr. Chair, I tend to support what you're saying and I thank you for your efforts in
this area.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair.
I looked at this when I received it and kind of pondered about it and you know I've
chaired two interesting committees, I've chaired the Planning Committee as well as
the Land Use Committee and I've always used the rule of three minutes. But I've
also tried to be fair about, you know, once in a while somebody's in the middle of a
very important testimony and so you will give them a little, few more seconds to wrap
it up.
But I think we've been able to get our work done by sticking fairly to that three minute
thing. And the thing is it's got to be fair. You know, if you allow one person to ramble
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on for five or six minutes, then the next person feels, and, and it's correct they should
have the same opportunity.
So if we say three minutes, that's the rule and I think that everybody understands
that. There's an amazing amount that can be said in three minutes, you know. It's
very interesting when you listen to testimony for hours, you can squeeze quite a bit
into three minutes if you prepare well.
Also there's always the opportunity for submitting testimony prior to the meeting and
there's always the opportunity to submit testimony after the meeting by written means
or you know people comment. If they're very passionate about something, they will
give us a call or they'll make an appointment and come talk to us so we, there are
many avenues to make your point if you want to.
So, I understand the need to have standardization, you know. I'm, tend to be rather
generous and I'd like to say sure you can have three, and you can have four, and you
can have five, but I think we get into the issue of fairness. So I can support the three
minute standard and I also am interested in what helps me a little bit is your
statement about us having discretion. If we had a meeting and only three people
showed up and they wanted to talk a little longer, the Chair has that opportunity as
long as he does it fairly for everyone.
Thank you
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Members. Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Cochran.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
Again, you know this particular item here, it, it would provide some kind of a standard
that we follow. Like you said, you know, if we suspend the Rules of the Council to
give additional time, you know, if the number of testifiers, you know, just by looking at
the numbers that you know, you can almost call a suspension of the rules and
provide whoever is testifying those additional minute.
But I like the idea about something uniform because I always followed whatever is
written, right here. And, you know, like one of the Members had said, sometimes we
give urn the leeway, of course, you know, we have some longwinded testifiers that
we, you know, we just interrupt urn and say that's it. But again, you know, for me the
magic word is suspension of the rules.
Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. I don't really have the liberty of saying that
I've run committee meetings yet. But I know, I, I have the liberty of saying that I've
attended these meeting and I have given testimony. And, you know, I really stand by
the three minute, one minute to conclude during the full Council meetings.
In committee meetings, I've been here where this place is very empty, you only have
maybe a couple, five or, or so people and these people are yes, passionate. These
people are very educated and knowledgeable about why they're here at this
particular committee meeting. So they have a lot to say.
I'm one of those people who can cram three minutes, a lot of stuff in three minutes
but, you know, I think during committee meeting is where the detailed work is done,
where a lot of the, the insight, the, the deeper knowledge of particular agenda items
are being addressed and, and that's why they attend.
I would support, you know, as chair of a committee to have that discretion, you know,
and if suspension of the rules apply at that point yes. So that's where I stand and so
with that I believe the current rule would, would state that. Am I, am I correct?
CHAIR MATEO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I move to keep Rule 17, as is.
CHAIR MATEO: As is. Thank you.
And, and just for additional information, Ms. Cochran. Those individuals who come to
testify if the subject matter is relative to this specific testimony and these individuals
are recognized as knowledgeable in the, in that specific arena, then it is the Chair's
option to recognize them as a resource. And you would still have the greater
opportunity and, giving that individual the opportunity to participate a little more
directly with, with that particular subject matter that's being discussed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, thank you for that point. That segways into Rule 18,
the resource persons in that rule. So, can I ask a question in regards to resource
person.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, hold, one minute.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In Rule 18.
CHAIR MATEO: Rule 18, this is a new rule to clarify that the Council and it's committees
may receive verbal comments from non-testifiers designated under the rule of
resource people. Individuals do not necessarily have to sign up as a testifier if it is
the Chair's intent to recognize and utilize them as resource individuals.
For example, you remember that, that meeting we had, in the last term with the panel
that was out here. Yeah, those, those individuals were individuals that were
recognized as resource individuals. So, Chair, has that opportunity as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And these resource people do they need to be on the
agenda at the time-CHAIR MATEO: They're, they're part-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --or could be called from the gallery.
CHAIR MATEO: No, they're, they're individuals that the Chair recognizes as resource that
could participate and contribute to the discussion that is relative to the subject matter
of the agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: So discretion, your discretion. Chair, Chairperson's discretion, yeah.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I agree with the, the, the three minute and one minute, but
the discretion of the Chair of a, of a committee, I was just trying to find where in the
rules it allows the Chair of the committee to suspend the rules without a two-thirds
vote.
CHAIR MATEO: Suspend the rules is, you can, you can ask you committee members, you,
you know, you just do what I'm doing right now, you know, subject matter. You can
just indicate to the committee members, we have "x" amount of people signed up to
testify, the subject matter is quite contentious, we will need more than, you know,
specific time to, to be able to hear all of the, all of the testifiers. And it is the Chair's
recommendation at this point that we suspend the rules, we provide greater
opportunities for those wanting to testify.
You can set your, your requirement at effective with this change, five minutes will be
recognized, ten minutes will be recognized as the norm for testimony. And subject to
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the call of all of your committee members, who will then vote on the Chairman's
recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama. Excuse, Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm sorry.
CHAIR MATEO: --Mr. Couch, are, are you done? Yeah, thank you very much.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would like to have a short recess to have a
discussion with you, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Sure, five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Five minutes.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, Council will stand in recess for five minutes.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 3:00 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 3:10 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui Organizational meeting for January 3, 2011
will reconvene.
Members, thank you very much for that very short break. The Chair will recognize
Mr. Hokama, at this point since he was the individual, or the Member who had the
floor prior to the break.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for allowing me to ask my questions
and I am satisfied with the responses that you have provided me, so thank you very
much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
And for the Members, the Chair indicated to Mr. Hokama that we will be taking this
whole issue called rule, Council Rules, and there are specifics that we still need to
address so it, it sits without question, it is clear, it is concise, and it is not subject to
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interpretation all the time. And we will allow, the item, subject matter will be
forwarded to the Policy Committee, which is chaired by, by Member Hokama and we
will have that discussion during committee.
Okay and that is the discussion that we have, we have had so thank you very much,
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: And during that committee meeting, Ms. Cochran, Mr. Couch, your
concerns that you had raised on the floor will also with Mr. Hokama's pursuit will also
be addressed in committee. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we are on the main motion as amended.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, thank you very much. Members, main motion as amended,
once again this is in regards to Resolution 11-3, "ADOPTING THE RULES OF THE
COUNCIL". Further discussion, Members? All those in favor of the motion to adopt
Resolution 11-3, as amended entitled "ADOPTING THE RULES OF THE COUNCIL",
signify by saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes", unanimously.
Mr. Clerk, lets proceed.
The following resolution was presented.
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RESOLUTION
NO.
11-4
ESTABLISHING THE STANDING COMMITTEES OF
THE COUNCIL, DEFINING THEIR DUTIES, AND
APPOINTING THEIR MEMBERS
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that the
following standing committees of the Council be established:
Budget and Finance Committee
Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee
General Plan Committee
Infrastructure Management Committee
Land Use Committee
Planning Committee
Policy Committee
Water Resources Committee
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui
that, to expedite the business of the Council, the standing committees of the
Council shall consider and make recommendations on all matters referred to
such committees as follows:
1.

Budget and Finance Committee
a.

Financial and performance audits.

b.

Budget, capital program, bond authorizations, and
intergovernmental loans.

c.

Taxes, rates, fees, and assessments for inclusion in the
budget, provided that revenue ordinances may also be
considered by other standing committees.

d.

Operations of the Department of Finance and the
Department of Personnel Services, including salaries and
collective bargaining cost items.
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2.

3.

Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee
a.

Cultural, leisure, and recreational issues.

b.

Business and economic development issues, including
agriculture.

c.

Operations of the Department of Parks and Recreation
(including concessions) and the Office of Economic
Development.

General Plan Committee
a.

4.

5.

Revisions to and updates of the General Plan and
community plans that are not specific to a project,
including the Maui Island Plan.

Infrastructure Management Committee
a.

County facilities construction and maintenance (including
road, drainage, and waste management systems), except
for water supply issues.

b.

Amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance, Housing
Code, and Building Code .

c.

Traffic safety.

d.

Environmental issues, including recycling and energy
efficiency.

e.

Operations of the Department of Environmental
Management, the Department of Public Works, and the
Department of Transportation.

Land Use Committee
a.

Project-specific amendments of State land use
boundaries, the General Plan, community plans, and
zoning ordinances.

b.

Other land use approvals, including variances and
conditional permits.

c.

Expedited approvals of housing projects pursuant to
State law (e.g., Chapter 201 H, Hawaii Revised Statutes).
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6.

7

Planning Committee
a.

Processing procedures for the General Plan and
community plans.

b.

Land use ordinances not specific to a project.

c.

Infrastructure impact fees based on long-range plans.

d.

Operations of the Department of Planning.

Policy Committee
a.

Intergovernmental issues, including the Hawaii State
Association of Counties.

b.

Appointments of executive branch officials, including
boards and commissions.

c.

Social services programs and related grants, including
grants of interests in real property.

d.

Affordable or residential workforce housing programs,
excluding expedited approvals of housing projects
pursuant to State law (e.g., Chapter 201H, Hawaii
Revised Statutes).

e.

Amendments to the Residential Workforce Housing
Policy and other affordable housing ordinances.

f.

Issues involving the responsibilities of two or more
standing committees.

g.

Operations of the Office of the County Clerk and the
Office of Council Services.

h.

Operations of the Civil Defense Agency; the Department
of the Corporation Counsel, including special counsel,
indemnifications, settlements, and ethics regulations; the
Department of Fire and Public Safety; the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns; the Department of Liquor
Control; the Department of Management; the Department
of Police; the Department of the Prosecuting Attorney;
and the Office of the Mayor (except for the Office of
Economic Development).
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8.

Water Resources Committee
a.

Amendments to and enforcement of the County Water
Code, including the Water Use and Development Plan.

b.

Operations of the Department of Water Supply.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui
that the following voting members be appointed to the various standing
committees of the Council commencing forthwith and terminating
January 2, 2013:
1.

Budget and Finance Committee
Joseph Pontanilla, Chair
G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa
Robert Carroll
Elle Cochran
Donald G. Couch, Jr.
Danny A. Mateo
Michael P. Victorino
Michael B. White

2.

Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee
Michael B. White, Chair
Elle Cochran, Vice-Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa
Robert Carroll
Donald G. Couch, Jr.
G. Riki Hokama
Joseph Pontanilla

3.

General Plan Committee
Gladys Coelho Baisa, Chair
Donald G. Couch, Jr., Vice-Chair
Robert Carroll
Elle Cochran
G. Riki Hokama
Danny A. Mateo
Joseph Pontanilla
Michael P. Victorino
Michael B. White
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4.

Infrastructure Management Committee
Elle Cochran, Chair
Michael P. Victorino, Vice-Chair
Robert Carroll
Donald G. Couch, Jr.
G. Riki Hokama
Danny A. Mateo
Joseph Pontanilla

5.

Land Use Committee
Robert Carroll, Chair
Michael B. White, Vice-Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa
Elle Cochran
Donald G. Couch, Jr.
G. Riki Hokama
Danny A. Mateo
Joseph Pontanilla
Michael P. Victorino

6.

Planning Committee
Donald G. Couch, Jr., Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa, Vice-Chair
Elle Cochran
Danny A. Mateo
Joseph Pontanilla
Michael P. Victorino
Michael B. White

7

Policy Committee
G. Riki Hokama, Chair
Robert Carroll, Vice-Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa
Elle Cochran
Donald G. Couch, Jr.
Danny A. Mateo
Joseph Pontanilla
Michael P. Victorino
Michael B. White
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8.

Water Resources Committee
Michael P. Victorino, Chair
Joseph Pontanilla, Vice-Chair
Gladys Coelho Baisa
Robert Carroll
Elle Cochran
G. Riki Hokama
Michael B. White

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui
that all Council members who are not voting members of a committee shall
serve as non-voting members of the committee and may participate in the
proceedings, but shall not be counted toward quorum for the committee.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
CHAIRMAN, ON YOUR BEHALF, I MOVE THAT
RESOLUTION 11-4 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Hokama, and second by Mr. Victorino, that
Resolution No. 11-4 be adopted.
Mr. Victorino, excuse me, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No further discussion, Chairman, it's very self-explaining.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, the, this particular resolution is quite lengthy
because it recognizes all of the Council committees as well as the membership on
the committees. If there is any request to do so, the Chair will gladly instruct the
Clerk to read this resolution. If not, the Chair will just proceed.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, we will proceed. Is there further discussion on the resolution?
Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion to adopt Resolution 11-4, signify by
saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes". Thank you, Members.
Mr. Clerk.
The following resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
NO.
11-5
APPOINTING THE COUNTY CLERK
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that it does
hereby appoint Jeffrey T. Kuwada as the County Clerk of the County of Maui,
effective retroactive to January 2, 2011, twelve o'clock meridian, for the term
ending January 2, 2013, twelve o'clock meridian, unless terminated earlier.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I MOVE FOR ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 11-5.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. White, second by Mr. Victorino to adopt
Resolution 11-5.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I request that the resolution be read in its entirety.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Clerk, please.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kuwada.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I'd to speak in support of the resolution appointing Jeffrey Kuwada to the position of
County Clerk. Mr. Kuwada has been diligent in performing his duties as the County
Clerk since October of 2009, and previously as Deputy Clerk beginning in March of
2004.
These duties include keeping and handling all petitions, bills, resolutions and other
communications of the Council; having charge of all Council records including the
recording of minutes of all the matters that come before the Council; and conducting
all elections held within the County.
Mr. Kuwada has shown that he has the experience and the balanced perspective
needed for the responsibilities of the Clerk's Office. During his career, he has given
much of his personal time to our community with his work with nonprofits. He has
developed a reputation for being a straight-shooter and someone you can depend on
to get the job done.
Mr. Chairman, I believe that Mr. Kuwada is a person of character and high integrity
and I respectfully ask that the Council support this resolution.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Members, further discussion? Hearing none,
Members, all those in favor of the motion to adopt Resolution 11-5, appointing
Jeffrey T. Kuwada as the County Clerk of the County of Maui, signify by saying "aye."
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried unanimously, nine "ayes".
Congratulations, Mr. Clerk.

The following resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
NO.
11-6
APPOINTING THE DIRECTOR OF
COUNCIL SERVICES
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that it does
hereby appoint Ken Fukuoka as the Director of Council Services of the
County of Maui, effective retroactive to January 2, 2011, twelve o'clock
meridian, for the term ending January 2, 2013, twelve meridian, unless
terminated earlier.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Clerk.
Mr. Carroll
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 11-6-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, I, sorry. Sorry, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
—11-6, APPOINTING THE DIRECTOR OF COUNCIL SERVICES.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. l's been moved by Mr. Carroll and second by Ms. Baisa, to
adopt Resolution 11-6.
Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
I have known the person, Mr. Ken Fukuoka for years. I worked with him for six years
prior, prior, on the Council. I can think of nobody better this time to serve this Council
and the people of Maui County.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr., thank you, Mr. Carroll. Mr. Carroll would you want to have
this resolution read?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, if the Clerk could please read the resolution in its
entirety.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Mr. Clerk, please.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, floor open for discussion? Seeing none,
Members, all those in favor of the motion to adopt Resolution No. 11-6, appointing
Ken Fukuoka as the Director of Council Services, signify by saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
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CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried unanimously, nine "ayes".
Thank you very much. Mr. Clerk, proceed.
The following resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
11-7
NO.
APPOINTING THE DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that it does
hereby appoint Lance T. Taguchi as the Deputy County Clerk of the County of
Maui, effective retroactive to January 2, 2011, twelve o'clock meridian, for the
term ending January 2, 2013, twelve o'clock meridian, unless terminated
earlier.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 11-7, "APPOINTING THE
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, it's been moved by Ms. Cochran and second by Ms. Baisa to
adopt Resolution 11-7.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. May I have the Clerk read the
resolution in its entirety, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Clerk, please.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

Organizational Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
January 3, 2011
Page 38

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. That's all.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, floor open for discussion? Is there any further
discussion on, on the resolution? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion to
adopt Resolution No. 11-7, appointing Lance T. Taguchi as the Deputy County Clerk,
signify by saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried unanimously, with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
The following resolution was presented.
RESOLUTION
NO.
11-8
APPOINTING THE STAFF OF THE
OFFICE OF COUNCIL SERVICES
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the County of Maui that it does
hereby approve the appointment of individuals to various positions in the
Office of Council Services, effective retroactive to January 2, 2011,
twelve o'clock meridian, for the term ending January 2, 2013, twelve o'clock
meridian, unless terminated earlier, at the pay ranges and pay steps as
provided for in Exhibit "A".
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE FOR THE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 11-8,
"APPOINTING THE STAFF OF THE OFFICE OF COUNCIL
SERVICES".
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank, thank you very much, we have a motion on the floor made by
Mr. Couch, second by, by Mr. White, to adopt Resolution No. 11-8.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess . . . wholeheartedly endorsed
by both, the both Mikes'. Thank you. Could we ask the County Clerk to read the
resolution in its entirety, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. Clerk, please.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Clerk.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
The, the Office of Council Services provides research, clerical, logistical support to
the committees of the County Council, to Councilmembers in their performances of
their legislative duties.
I am new to this body and I have little experience working with the staff. What
interaction I have had with a few of the members of the staff has been very
professional and efficient. I would like to encourage all Members to support this
motion for the appointment of our Council staff.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, floor is open for discussion? Seeing,
hearing none, all those in favor of the motion to adopt Resolution No. 11-8, entitled
"APPOINTING THE STAFF OF THE OFFICE OF COUNCIL SERVICES", signify by
saying "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, MATEO, PONTANILLA,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no."
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried unanimously, with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with County Communications. The following
County Communications are recommended for referral to the following committees
as noted.
The following County Communications were presented.

COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO. 11-1 - DANNY A. MATEO, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated December 16, 2010)
Relating to the confirmation of the Corporation Counsel.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 11-1 be referred to the Policy Committee.
NO. 11-2 - DANNY A. MATEO, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated December 16, 2010)
Relating to the confirmation of the Prosecuting Attorney.
The County Clerk stated that the recommended action is that County Communication
No. 11-2 be referred to the Policy Committee.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, if there are no objections, both County
Communication Nos. 11-1 and 11-2 will be referred to the Policy Committee as
referenced by the Clerk. Any objections.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, so ordered. Mr. Clerk, proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there is no further business to come before the Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, thank you very much. We've concluded our business for the
day.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Yes, go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just a quick question for you. Does this referral then start
the 60 day clock by Charter regarding those two nominees for those two positions?
CHAIR MATEO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is it our understanding that the clock starts today.
CHAIR MATEO: Sixty days. Mr. Fukuoka.
DIRECTOR OF COUNCIL SERVICES KEN FUKUOKA: Perhaps the Corp. Counsel should
speak to that, or the Acting Corp. Counsel, but it's my understanding that it's when
the appointment is made. I'm not sure that we've, that the Council has gotten notice
of that yet.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama, the Clerk advises me that no formal notice had been
received as of this date.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So it is the Council's understanding, just to be clear,
Mr. Chair, please, that the clock has not yet started and that the committee still has
its full 60 days to make its investigation and for me to make my recommendation to
the committee.
CHAIR MATEO: The Chair is going to say yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we are at the end of the agenda.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members, once again, our business is done for the day. And just as
a reminder, the journey for all of us now begins.
Council of the County of Maui, Organizational Meeting for January 3, 2011 is now
adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT
The organizational meeting of January 3, 2011, was adjourned by the Chair at 3:25 p.m.
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